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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPCRT

Honorable Mavor and Members of
the city Council
City of Windom, Minnesota

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Windom, Minnesota,
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006, which collectively comprise the City’s basgic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City
of Windom, Minnesota’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit. Wa did not audit the financial statements of the Telecommunications Fund, which
statements reflect total assets of $9,146,822 as of December 31, 2006 and total revences of $£1,269%,547 for
the year then ended. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included :Eér the Telecommunications
Fund is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted ocur audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabls agsurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
asgsessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. Wa believe that our audit provides a reasonable bagis for our

opinions.

The financial statements referred to above do not include the financial data of the windom Area Hospital
Fund, which should be included to conform with agecounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.. The financial statements of the Windom Area Hospital Fund were audited by other auditors whose
report dated June 22, 2006, expressed an ungqualified cpinion on those statementsg. TIf the omitted fund had
been inciuded, based on audited information, the proprietary fund type assets would have increased by
$14,623,363 and liabilities would have increased by $3,389,534 respectivaly as of December 31, 2008, and
revenues and expenses would have increased $11,844,404 and 510,489,450 respactively for the twelve month
period ended December 31, 2006.

In our opinien, except for the effect on the financial statements of the omission described in the preceding
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material raspects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Windom, Minnasota as of December 31, 2006, and
the respective changes in finangial posgition and cash flows, where applicable, thersof and tha budgetary
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally

acceptad in the United States of America.
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The Management’g Digcugsion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplemental information reguired by the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We and the other auditoxs have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
management inquiries regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the requirsd supplementary

information. However, we did not audit the information and express nc opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions onm the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Windom, Minnesota’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and
individual nommajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nommajor fund financial
statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, bagsed on our audit and the report of other auditors,
are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other
auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Dernpp 2. ik, [,

Worthington, Minnesota
June 30, 2007



CITY OF WINDOM, MINNESCTA
MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

This section of the City of Windom, Minnesota’'s annual financial report presents management's
discussion and analysis of the City's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended
on December 31, 2006. Please read it in conjunction with the City’'s financial statements,
which immediately follow this section.

The Management’s Discussion and 2Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Government Accounting Standard Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 34 -
Bagilc Financial Statements —- and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments issuved in June, 1999,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Key financial highlights for the 2006 year include the following:

o The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent year
by $19,276,718 {(net assets).

° The City's total net assets from operations decreased by $456,393.

e« Ag of the close of the current year, the City’'s governmental funds reported combined
ending net assets of $8§,848,638. Of this total amount, fifty-five (55) percent or
$4,822,160 is available for use within the City's designations and policies.

@ At the end of the current vear, designated fund balance for the general fund was
$557,575 or twenty-eight (28) percent of total general fund expenditures.

L] The City’'s net total bonded debt increazed by $50,958 during the current fiscal
vear. : S

® The City re-financed three bonds to obtain a lower rate of interest, which will save
the citizens approximately $30,000.

L] Water and sewer rates were raised to improve cash flow coverage for these two funds.

© The Telecom fund is continuing to show improvement through the additicn of
customers.

-]

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management's Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s
financial statements. The C(City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three
components : 1) government-wide financial statements, 2Z) fund financial statements, and 3)
notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other statistical information in
addition tec the basic financial statements themselves. The diagram below depicts how the
various parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one another.
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CITY OF WINDOM, MINNESOTA
MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAYT, STATEMENTS (Cont’ d)

The dJdiagram shown below summarizes the major features of the City's financial statements,
including the portion of the City’'s activities they cover and the types of information they

contain.

highlights the structure and ccntents of each statement.

The remainder of the overview section of management’s discussion and analysis

Major Features of the Govermment-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide
Statements

Fund

Financial

Statements

Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds

Activities the City operates

in fund balances

Scope Entire City The activifies of the City
that are not proprietary, [gimilar to private businesses:
-|such as public safety, utilities, liquor store
public works and
recreation
Required NStatement of net (Balance Sheet (Statement of net assets
Financial assets . Statement of revenues,
Statements CiStatement of [IStatement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net
activities expenditures, and changes [assets

"Statement of cash flows

Rocounting Basis
and Measurement
Focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Fodified accrual
2

ccounting and current
financial rescurces focus

Accrual accounting and economic
rescurces focus

Tyvpe of
Asgset/Liability
Information

A1l assets and
liabilities,

financial and
capital,
and long-term

both

short-term

lGenerally assets expected
to be used up and
liabilities that come due
during the year or soon
thereafter; no capital
assets or long-term
liabilities included

211 assets and liabilities,
hoth financial and capital,
short-term and long-term

Type of
Inflow/Cutflow
Information

211 revenues and
expenses during
year,
when cash is
received or paid.

regardless of

Revenue for which cash is
received during or soon
after the end of the year;
expenditures when goods or
services have been
received and the related
liability ig due and

All revenues and expenses
during the vear, regardless of
when cash is received or paid.

payable.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview

of the City's finances

government-wide statements:

¢ Statement of Net Assets -
the City’s assets and liabilities,
Over time,

assets.

increases

in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

or decreases

There are L[wo

The statement of net assets presents information on all of
with the difference between the two reportaed as net
in net agsebs may sServe as

a useful

indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.



CITY OF WINDOM, MINNESOTA
MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

» SBtatement of Activities -~ The statement of activities presents information showing how
the City’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal yvear. All changes in net
assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and exXpensesg are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periocds (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the govermment-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs

through user fees and charges (business-type activitiesg). The governmental activities of the
City include general government, public safety, public works, health and welfare, culture and
recreation, economic development and airport. The business-type activities of the City

include the Municipal Liguor Store, Water, Electric, Sewer, Telecom, Arena, Multipurpose
Center, and River Bluff Townhomes.

Fund Financial Statements

The £fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's funds—
focusing on its most significant or “major” funds-rather than the City as a whole. Funds are
accounting devices the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on
particular programs:

© Some funds are reguired by State law and by bond covenants.

e The City establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or
to show that it is properly using certain revenues,

The City has two kinds of funds:

¢ Govermmental Fumnds - The City’'s basic services are included in governmental funds,
which generally focus on: 1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash flow in and out; and 2) the balances left at year-end that are
available for spending. Ccnsequently, the governmental funds statements provide a
detailed short-term view that helps to determine whether there are more or less
financial regcources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s
programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus
of the government-wide statements, additional information (reconciliation schedules)
follows the governmental funds Balance Sheets and Statements of Revenues and
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance that explain the relationship (or differences)
betwsen these two typss of financial statement presentations.

¢ Proprietary Funds - Services for which the City charges a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as government-wide

statements, only in more detail. The City maintaing one type of proprietary fund.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functlons presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds

to account for 1ts Municipal Liguor Store, Water, Electric, Sewer, Telecom, Arena,
Multipurpose Center, and River Bluff Tcocwnhomes funds.

Kotes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the

data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.




CITY OF WINDOM, MINNESOTA
MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d}

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS)

Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's
financial position. In the cagse of the City of Windem, Minnesota, assets exceeded
liabilities by $19,276,718 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. By far the largest
portion of the City’s net assets (71 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets
{(e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assests to provide
services to citizens; consequently, rthese asgets are not available for future spending.
Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay thisg debt must be provided from other
gources, since the capital assets themselves cannct be used to liguidate these liabilities.
is as follows:

A summary of the City’s net assets as of December 31, 2006,

NET ASSETS - 2006

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
Current and Other Assets 8 5,66GC,351 $ 3,202,158 5 8,862,509
Capital Assets 7,801,564 26,694,082 34,486,046

Total Assets 13,462,315 29,896,240 43,358,555
Current Liabilities 113,863 888, 952 1,002,815
Non-Current Liabilities 4,4%9,814 18,579,208 23,079,022

Total Liabilities 4,613,677 19,468,160 24,081,837
Investment in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 3,302,150 10,334,659 13,636,809
Restricted 724,328 241,332 965,660
Unrestricted 4,822,160 (147,911) 4,674,249

Total Net Assets -

December 31, 2006 S 8,848,638 S 10,428,080 $ 19,276,718

2an additional portion of the City’s net assets (5 percent) represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance is
comprised of unrestricted net assets totaling $4,674,249. The City is able to report
overall positive balances in all three categories of net assets.

iz as follows:

A summary of the City’s net assets as of Decemkber 31, 2005,

NET ASSETS - 2005

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
Current and Other Assets S 3,984,365 4 3,504,482 s 7,488,851
Capital Assets 7,500,111 27,865,468 35,374,579

Total Asgsets 11,493,480 31,369,950 42,863,430
Current Liakilities 137,322 837,348 974,671
Non-Current Liabkilities 3,038,253 18,117,395 22,155,648

Total Liabilities 3,175,575 19,954,744 23,130,319
Investment in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 4,47C, 858 19,439,927 14,910,785
Restricted 112,372 241,332 353,704
Unrestricted 3,734,878 733,947 4,468,622

Total Net Assets -

$_ 8,317,905 511,415,206 $ 19,733,111

December 31, 2005

-6-




CITY OF WINDOM, MINNESOTA
MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY A5 A WHOLE (GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS) (CONT'D)

Change in Net Assets

Governmental Activities

Govermmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $530,733, thereby accounting for
6 percent of the total growth in the net assets of the City. The most significant change
in governmental net assets is state ald/grants and revenues surpassing expenses for the
current year. ‘

Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities decreased the City's net assets by $987,126. The teleccom fund
accounted for the majority of the overall decrease in net assets in the proprietary funds.
The largest portion of the net asset decrease in the enterprise funds results from
liabilities exceeding assets by $2,824,855 and expenses exceeding revenues by $1,151,743 in
the telecom fund. In addition, the telecom fund reports a deficit cash balance in the
amount of $1,067,154 thereby reducing the City’'s cash balance in 2006. This is a regult of
the costs incurred.during the implementation phase for the telecommunications system.

A summary of the City’s chaenge in nst assets for the year ended December 31, 2006, is as

follows:
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS - 2006

\

Covernmental Buginess-Type

Activities Activities Total
Revenueas
Program Revenues
Charges for Services s 475,290 § 8,908,311 $ 10,384,601
Capital Grants and Contributions 258,878 - = - 258,878
General Revenues
Property Taxes 702,473 347,107 1,045,580
Unallecated Federal and State Aid 1,714,756 - - - 1,714,756
Other 667,299 25,427 692,726
Total Revenues 3,818,696 10,281,845 14,100,541
Expenses
General Government 449,215 - = 449,218
public Safety 1,222,170 - - - 1,222,17¢
Public Works 717,772 - - - 717,772
Health & Welfare 112,206 - - - 112,206
Culture & Recreation 532,468 - - - 532,468
Conservation & Ecconomic bevelopment 229,150 - - - 229,150
Alrport 122,965 - - - 122,965
Interest on Long-Term Debt 427,291 - - = 427,291
Liquor - - - 1,178,519 1,179,519
Water - - - 938,976 839,976
Blectric - - - 4,680,124 4,680,124
Sewer - - - 997,274 $97,274
Telecom - - - 2,421,290 2,421,290
Arena - = = 358,615 359,615
Multipurpose - - - 268,907 268,807
River Bluff Townhomes - - - 102,266 102, 266
Total Expenses 3,813,237 10,948,971 14,762,208
Increase {Decrease) in
Net Assets before Transifers 5,459 (687,126} (661, 667)
Transfers 525,274 (320,000} 205,274
Change in Net Assets 530,733 (587,126} (456,393)
Net Assets —~ Beginning 8,317,905 11,415,206 19,733,111
Net Agsets - Ending ~ December 31, 2006 8,848,638 10,428,080 19,276,718



CITY OF WINDOM, MINNESCTA
MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS) {(Cont’d)

A summary of the City’s change in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2005, iz as

Businegse-Type
Activities Total

$ 8,742,644 $ 9,141,356

follows:
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS - 2005
Governmental
Activities
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $ 398,752
Capital Grants and Contributions 801,030
General Revenues
Property Taxes 2,260,858
Unallocated Federal and State Aild 1,267,446
Other 536,078
Total Revenues 5,264,204
Expenses
Ceneral Govermment 469,306
Public Safety 1,078,507
Public Works 740, 865
Health & Welfare 25,305
culture & Recreation 485,480
Congservation & Economic Development 224,938
Airport 105,903
Interest on Long-Term Debt 373,120
Licuor - - =
Water - - -
BElectric - - -
Sewer - - -
Telecam - - -
Arena - - -
Multipurpose - - -
River Bluff Townhomes - - -
Total Expenses 3,503,425
Increasge (Decrease) in
Net Assets before Transfers 1,760,779
Transfers 518,070
¢thange in Net Assets 2,278,849
Net Assets — Beginning 6,033,608
Prior Period Adjustment 5,358

Net Assets - Ending - December 31, 2005 8,317,905

7,500 808,530
259,695 2,520,593

- - - 1,267,446
33,342 569,420
9,043,181 14,307,385
.- - 469,306

- - - 1,078,507

- - - 740,865
S 25,305

- - - 485,480

- - 224,939

- - - 105,903

- - - 373,120
1,088,521 1,088,521
314,116 914,116
4,454,242 4,454,242
919,875 919,875
2,038,244 2,038,244
346,520 346,520
283,631 283,631
100,011 100,011
10,145,160 13,548,585
(1,101,979) 658, 800
(311, 025) 207,045
(1,413,004) 865, 845
12,828,210 18,861,908
- - - 5,358
11,415,206 19,733,111



CITY OF WINDOM, MINNESOTA
MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

FINANCIAL ANALYSISE OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE ({GOVERMMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS) (Cont'd)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - REVENUES
Total: $3,818,696

Public Works - $1,606 —
1% j\ Culiure & Recreatior B General Government - $1,250
\ 332,771
1% RABLbl:
Public Safety - $353 060 _ \ l o Public Safety - $353,080
9% Y /
i / O Public Works - $1,606

General Governimen
$1,250
1%

\ /
| /
\ kY / B Culture & Recreation - $32,771
) / Conservation & Economic

/ Development - $49,40C Conservation & Economic Development - $49,400
1%

Airport - $37,203
1% B Preperty Taxes - $702,473

Federal & State Grants
$258,878 T

7% B Airport - $37,203

Other - $661,605

16% B inallocated Federal & Staie Aid - $1,714,756
Property Taxes - $702,473 H investment Earnings - $5,694
17%
Other - $661,605
‘ N
Investment Earnings - $5,694
19 Unallocated Federal & State DFederal & State Grants - $258,878
Ald - $1,714,756
45%
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - EXPENSES
Total: $3,813,237
Interest on Long-Term Debt -
$427,291
119 General Government - $449,215
p General Government -
Alrport - $1232,965 \ $440,215 Public Safety - $1,292,170
3% ™ Y e
Conservation and Sconomic \ " L Pubsic Works - §717,772

Development - $229,150

6% O Health and Welfare - $112,206

Culiure and Recreation - $532,468

Culture and Recreation - . .
._Public Safety - $1,222 170 8 Conservation and Econamic Development -

$532 468
14% 3004 $229,150
/ N, H Airport - $122,965
/ AN
/ \ i Intarest on Long-Term Debt - $§427 291
/ \_Public Works - $717,772
Health and Welfare - 19% -
$112,206

3%




CITY OF WINDOM, MINNESCTA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

FINANCIAL AMALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS) (Cont’d)

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES - REVENUES
Total: $10,281,845

Property Taxes - $347,107
3%

River BIuff Townhomes - lnvestment Earmings -

$68,914 $19,027
Multipurpose Center - 1% 1% Hquor - $1,264.798
$67,362 @Water - $1,059,136
1% Contributions - $5,500 O Eleciric - $5,082,795

1% [1Sewer - $904,960
B Telecorn - $1,269,547
Liquor - $1,264,798 @ Arena - $191,799
12% Multipurpose Center - $67 362
O River Bluff Townhomes - $68,914
Water - $1,059,136 Property Taxes - $347,107
10% E Contribufions - $5,500
O lnvestment Earnings - $19,927

Arena - $191,788
2%

Telecom - $1,269,547
12%

Sewer - $904,960
’ 9%

Electric - $5,082,795
438%

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - EXPENSES
Total: $10,948,971

River Bluff Townhomes -

. $102.266 E Liquor - $1,178,519
) 1% Water - $939,976
Multipurpose Center - EIElectric - $4.680,124
268, 7 27+
$ 2%?07 0 Sewer - $997,274

Liquor - $1,179,519 MTelecom - 2,421,290
11% B Arena - $359,6156
Multipurpose Center - $268,907
2 River Bluff Townhomes - $102,268

Arena - $359,615
3%

Water - $939,976

Telecom - $2,421,290 9%
22%

Sewer ~ $997.274/

a0 \E[ectric - 54,680,124

43%

-1



CITY OF WINDOM, MINNESOTA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

FINANCIAL ANATYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS (FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS)

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance related legal reguirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide informatien on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City’s financing requirements, In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal vear, the City’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $3,236,245, an increase of 3$1,200,205 in comparison with the prior
vear. 0of this total, $1,954,341 of the fund balances are unreserved, which indicates that
thogse funds are available for spending.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the fund balance of the general fund was $557,576, which was designated for working

capital needs.

The fund balance of the City’'s general fund increased by $223,166 during the current fiscal
vear. This vear’s increase was due to the favorable budget wvariances.

Businegg-Type Funds

The City’'s business-type (“proprietary”) funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The focus of the City’s
business-type funds is providing goods and services.

As of the end of the current fiscal vear, the City’s business-type funds reported combined
ending net assets of 510,428,080, a decrease of $987,126 in comparison with the prior year. Of
thiz total, a deficit balance of $147,911 of the net assets is unreserved and unrestricted,
which indicates that portion of net assets that are not available for spending.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
The City apprcved the original 2006 general fund budget in December of 2005, anticipating an

increase in general fund reserves of $0.
The actual results for the year showed an increase of $223,166. .

¢ Actual revenues were $196,082, or 11.7 percent, more than budget, due primarily to
increased intergovernmental revenues.

= Actual expenditures were §27,084, or 1.4 percent, less than hudget. This overall
favorable variance was & combination of positive variances in general governmental,
health and welfare, and culture and recreation expenditures.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Asgsets

The City’'s investment in capital assets for. its governmental and business-type activities as
of December 31, 2006, amounts to 634,496,046 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and eguipment,
infrastructure and construction in progress. The total increase in the City’s investment in
capital assets for the current £fizscal year was $1,241,265 or 2.4 percent. Most of the
increase in both the governmental and busginess-type activities is attributable to governmental

construction in progress.

-11-



CITY OF WINDOM, MINNESOTA

MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Comnt-’d)

Both the City's

governmental

to the financial statements.

Bonded Debt
At vear-end,

Land

Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Construction in Progress

Other

Total - December 31, 2006

Land

Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Construction in Progress

Cther

Total - Decembexr 31,

the City had $19,568,207 in outstanding bonded debt.

and business-type
outstanding commitments for capital expenditures.

CAPITAL ASSETS —~ NET OF DEPRECIATION -~ 2006

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

8 227,061
2,345,795
2,653,437

209,087
2,366,574

$ 7,801,964

$ 154,922
10,865,809
1,112,165
328,285
14,225,801

$ 26,694,082

CAPITAL ASSETS -~ NET OF DEPRECIATION - 2005

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type

Activities

$ 227,061
1,315,675
2,851,089
1,302,513
1,812,773

2005 ¢ 7,509,111

s 126,585

11,220,241
1,361,274
328,285
14,829,073
5_27,865,468

activities have a significant level
These commitments are detailed in the notes

Total

§ 381,983
13,211,604
3,772,602
537,382
16,582,475
$_34,456,046

Total

5 353,656
12,535,916
4,212,363
1,630,788
16,641,846
$_35,374,578

of

Detailed information about

the City’s bonded debt and cther long-term liabilities is presented in Note 5 to the financial

statements.

Bonded Debt

General Obligation Bonds

General CObligation Revenue Bonds

Revenue Bonds

Total 2006

Bondad Debt

General Obligation RBonds

General Obligation Revenue Bonds

Revenue Bonds

Total 2005

Governmental
Activities

OUTSTANDING BONDED DEBT - 2006

Business~Type
Activities

$ 3,207,524

$_ 3,207,524

§ 1,239,000
5,416,683
8,705,000

$_ 16,360,683

OUTSTANDING BONDED DEBT -~ 2005

Governmental Businesg-Type
Activities Activities
§ 2,444,854 $ 1,281,000

$_2,444,954

-12-

5,846,285
9,935,000

$ 17,062,295

Total

S 4,446,524
5,416,683
9,705,000

$_ 19,568,207

Total

5 3,725,954
5,846,295
9,935,000

$ 19,507,249



. CITY OF WINDCM, MINNESOTA
MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

FACTORS BEARING ON THE CITY’ S FUTURE
« The City’s investment earnings have been reduced significantly over the past few years
due to the dramatically lower interest rates and reductions in invested funds.
e Property tax reforms and budget deficits at the state level have significantly impacted
government aid payments made to the City. The City’'s state aid was reduced for 2003
and beyond by approximately $185,C00 per year.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and
creditors with & general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City’s
aceountability for the money it receives. If cone has questions about this report or needs
additional financial informatiom, contact the City Administrator, City of Windom, 444 gER
Street, P. 0. Box 38, Windom, MN 56101 or call (507) 831-6129.
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City of Windom, Minnesota

CITY OF WINDOM, MINNESOTA
TATEME ASER

ASSETS

Cash on hand, checking and time deposits
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Current taxes receivable
Special assessments receivable:

Current and deferred

Delinquent
Loans raceivable
Inventories
Property held for resale
beferred charges
Bond issue costs,
Bond discount costs,
Property, plant, eguipment
Less: accumilated depreciation
Total assets and other debits

LIABILITIES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Interest payable
Customer deposits
Deferred revenues, other
Non-current liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

NET ASSETSH
Net Assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Debt service

Unrestricted

Total net assaets

'he accompanying notes are

net of accumulated amcrtization ~

net of accumulated amortization -

ECEMBER 31, 2

Exhibit A

Governmental Business-~Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 2,231,728 & 963,384 3 3,195,112
- 241,332 241,332
143,450 863,519 1,006,969
47,251 - 47,251
28,707 - 28,707
1,086,153 - 1,086,153
3,876 - 3,876
678,914 - 678,914
- 852,850 852,850
1,440,272 - 1,440,272
- 19,375 19,375
68,711 68,711
192,987 192,987
11,022,205 40,977,360 51,999,565
3,220,241 14,283,278 17,503,519
-1 13,462,315 $ 29,896,240 $ 43,358,555
<] 113,463 35 365,873 8 479,336
- 347,853 347,853
400 70,087 70,497
- 105,129 105,129
566,969 1,781,303 2,348,272
3,932,845 16,797,905 20,730,750
4,613,677 19,468,160 24,081,837
3,302,150 10,334,659 13,636,808
8,231 - 8,231
716,097 241,332 957,429
4,822,160 {147,911} 4,674,249
5 8,848,638 -] 10,428,080 5 19,276,718

an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Windom, Minnesota

Exhibit B
ITY OF WI M ‘Th

STATEMENT OF AQTIVITIES

FOR

'TT PROGRAM
Government Activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Conservation and economic development
Airport
Interest on long-term debt

Total government activities

Business-type Activities
Municipal liquor
Water
Electric
Sewer
Telecom
Arena
Multi-Purpose Center
River Bluff Townhomes
Total buginess-type activities

Total government

ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2

Program Revenues

Operating
Charges for Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions
] 449,215 $ 1,250 -] -
1,222,170 353,060 -
17,772 1,606 -
112,206 - -
532,468 32,771 -
228,150 45,400 -
122,965 37,203 -
427,291 - -
3,813,237 475,290 -
1,179,51¢ 1,264,798 -
939,976 1,059,136 -
4,680,124 5,082,795 -
997,274 904,960 -
2,421,290 1,269,547 -
358,615 191,799 -
268,907 67,362 -
102,266 68,914 -
10,948,871 9,509,311 -

$ 14,762,208 -] 10,384,601 % -

General Revenues:
Taxeas:
Property taxes - general and debt service
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs:
tUnallocated federal and state aid
Contributions
Unrastricted investment earnings
Other
Transfers
Total general revenues, and transfers

Change in net assets

Net assets, January 1, 2006
Net asgetsz, Pecember 31, 2006



Net ({Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Capital
Grants and Government Business-type
Contributions Activities Activities Total
2,800 5 (445,165} & - § (445,165)
- (869,110} - (869,110)
- (716,166} - (716,166)
- (112,206} - (112,206)
- (499,697) - {499,697)
- (178,750) - {179,750)
256,078 170,316 - 170,316
- (427,291) - (427,291)
258,878 (3,079,065) - {3,079,068)
- - 85,279 85,279
- - 119,160 119,160 .
- - 402,671 402,671
- - (92,314) (92,314)
- - {1,151,743) {1,151,743)
- - (167,816) {167.816)
- - (201,545) (201,545)
- - (33,352) (33,352}
- - (1,039,560) (1,038,660}
258,878 {3,079,089) (1,039,660} (4,118,729}
H 702,473 -] 347,107 3 1,049,580
1,714,756 - 1,714,756
- 5,500 5,500
5,694 19,827 25,621
661, 605 - 661,605
525,274 {320, 000) 205,274
3,609,802 52,534 3,662,336
530,733 (987,126) (456,393)
8,317,905 11,415,206 19,733,111
& 8,848,638 $ 10,428,080 $ 19,276,718

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stztements
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City of Windom, Minnesota

ASSETS
Cash on hand, checking and
and time deposits
Accounts receivable, net of allowances
Grants receivable
Current taxes receivable
Special agsessments receivable:
Current and deferred
Delinguent
Loans receivable
Interfund loans raceivable
Property held for resale,
construction in progress

Total assets

LIABILITIE B E
Liabilities:
Cagh deficiency
Accounts payable
customer deposits
Deferred revenues, current taxes
Deferred revenues,
special assessments
Interfund notes payable
Notes payable
Total liabilities
Fund Balances:
Fund balance - unreserved, undesignated
fund balance - designated
Fund balance -~ reserved
Total fund balances

motal liabilities and fund balances

Exhibit €

Capital Projects

Genaral Fund

573,785 & 146,882
9,485 55
15,052 13,655
598,322 8, 160,592
- & -
28,9486 79,965
11,800 -
- 2,760
40,746 82,725
- 77,867
557,576 -
557,576 77,867
598,322 8 160,592




Honmajor

2006 A Governmental Total
Refunding Funds Governmental
Bond Fund (8chedule 1) Funds

618,050 g 1,040,382 g 2,378,099
- 133,810 143,450
- 47,251 47,251
- - 28,707
- 1,086,153 1,086,153
- 3,876 3,876
- 678,914 678,914
- 77,022 77,022
- 1,440,272 1,440,272
618,050 -] 4,507,780 3 5,884,744
- $ 147,371 -1 147,371
- 4,552 113,463
- 400 400
- - 11,800
- 1,086,153 1,086,153
- 74,262 77,022
- 1,212,280 1,212,290
- 2,525,028 2,648,499
- 1,876,474 1,954,341
- - 557,576
618,050 106,278 724,328
618,050 1,982,752 3,236,245
618,050 $ 4,507,780 8 5,884,744

The accompanying notes are an integral part ¢f the financial statements
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Ccity of Windom, Minnesota Exhibit D

RE ILIATIO F_THE VE AT BAT, E SHERT
T HE STATEME! T _ABSET
DECEMRER 31, 2

Total Fund Balances for Governwental Funds 3 3,236,245

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the

statement of net assets are different because:

Ccapital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resourcas and therefore are not reported as
assets in governmental funds. Those assets consist of:

Land and construction in progress ] 436,158
Other capital assets 10,586,047
Accumalated depreciation {3,220,241) 7,801,964

Assessments to be collected, but are not available soon
enough to pay for the current period's expenditures, and

tharefore are reported as deferred special assessments

in the funds 1,097,953
Long-term liabilities are not due and pavable in the current
period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the
govermmental funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist
of:
Bonds payable (3,287,524)

Total Net Assets of Governmental Activities 4 8,843,638

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thege gstatements
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city of Windom, Minnesota

TATENE REVE

b

EXPENDITURE i
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED I MBER 31, 2

Revenues
Local property taxes
8pecial assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenues
Federal grants
State grants
County grants
Charges for services and facilities
Fines and forfeits
Investment income
Other revenues

Total revenues

E, nditur
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation:
Parks and general
Library
Swim pool
Conservation and development:

Economic development & assistance

Al rport
Capital outlay:
Other
Debt sgervice:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) axpenditures

Financi
Proceads from debt issuance
Operating transfers in
Operating transfera out

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance, Januwary 1, 2006
Fund balance, December 31, 2006

Exhibit E

BAT, E
Capital
Genaral Projecgts
Fund Fund

235,974 143,000
- 6,610
71,107 -
1,396,101 131,188
2,800 -
34,168 -
23,047 -
- 4,313
113,805 333,582
1,877,002 618,693
391,234 -
847,700 -
510,477 3,553
11,545 -
212,880 -
- 28,361
- 476,132
- 138,651
- 203,596
1,973,836 850,283
(96,834} (231,500)
320,000 306,211
320,000 306,211
223,166 74,611
334,410 3,256
557,576 77.867




Nonmajor

2006 A Governmental Total
Refunding Funds Governmental
Bond Fund {Schedule 2} Funds

- & 355,211 s 734,185

- 201,433 208,043

- - 71,107

- 187,467 1,714,756

- 240,592 240,592

- 15,486 15,486

- - 2,800

- 441,122 475,290

- 1,771 24,818

- 1,381 5,694

- 118,293 565,680

- 1,562,756 4,058,451

- - 391,234

- 197,869 1,045,569

- - 514,030

- - 11,545

- - 212,880

- 147,258 147,258

- 72,572 72,572

- 158,615 186,976

- 49,234 49,234

- 442,719 918,851

- 207,429 346,080
15,739 207,956 427,29]
15,738 1,483,652 4,323,520
(15,739) 79,104 (265,069)
840,000 - 940,000
- 269,554 895,765
(306,211} (64,280) {370,491}
633,789 205,274 1,465,274
618,050 284,378 1,200,205
- 1,698,374 2,036,040
618,050 5 1,982,752 s 3,236,245

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
~18-



City of Windom, Minnesota

B ILIATT F_THE VE TATE P
VENUE EXPENDIT B B E
T E STATE F ACTIVITIE

FOR THE YEAR EMDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - GQovernmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues in
the funds
Change in accrual for deferred taxes - current -]

Change in accrual for deferred taxes - special assessments

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.

However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those

assets is depreciated over their estimated useful lives:
Expenditures for capital assets

Less current year depreciation . .

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the Statement of Net Agsets. Repayment of
bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement
of Net Agsetg. Other costs related to debt igsuance and
retirement use governmental fund resources, but recognizing
them as expenses is deferred and amortized on the Statement
of Nat Assets.

Proceaeds from debt issuance

Payment of Hosgpital debt

Payment of Tax Increment Financing debt

~ Repayment of bonds

3,662
(243,417)

918,851
625,998

(240,000)
{(80,000)
(38,650)
346,080

Exhibit F

1,200,205

(239,755}

292,853

(722,570}

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

-19-

530,733



City of Windom, Minnesota

Exhibit G

TATEMNE F_REVE EXPENDIT S T ES -
BUDGET Al = GENERAY,
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006
Variance with
Final Budgat
2006 Budgeted Amount 20086 Over
Ravenues Original Final Actual (Under)
local property taxes 3 278,810 ] 278,810 235,974 (42,836}
Licenses and permits 46,100 46,100 71,107 25,007
Intergovernmental revenues 1,215,310 1,215,310 1,396,101 180,791
County grants - - 2,800 2,800
Charges for sexvices and facilities 35,000 35,000 34,168 (832)
Finesz and forfeits 25,500 25,500 23,047 (2,453)
Other revenues 80,200 80,200 113,805 33,605
Total revenues 1,680,920 1,680,920 1,877,002 196,082
Expenditures
Current:
General government 380,990 380,9%0 391,234 10,244
Public safety 879,900 879,800 847,700 {32,200)
Public works 532,000 532,000 510,477 {21,523)
Health and welfare 10,000 10,000 11,545 1,545
Culture and recreation:
Parks and general 198,030 198,030 212,880 14,850
Total expenditures 2,000,920 2,000,820 1,973,836 (27,084)
Excass of revenues over
{under) supenditures (320,000} {(320,000) (96,834) 223,166
41 i r
Operating transfers in 320,000 320,000 320,000 -
Net change in fund balancas - - 223,166 223,166
fund balance, January 1, 2006 334,410 334,410 334,410 -
Fund balance, December 31, 2006 $ 334,410 ] 334,410 557,576 223,166

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the £inancial statements
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city of Windom, Minnesota Exhihit H

TATEME: ¥ ASSET,
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEME 1, 2
Municipal
ASSETS Ligquor Water Electric
current assets Fund Fund Fund
Cash and interest-bearing deposits 3 232,908 - 33,928 ] 2,117,467
Restricted cash - - -
Accounts and accrued interest receivable 6,468 - 811,204
Inventories 123,855 28,467 438,584
Total current assets 363,231 62,396 3,367,958
Fixed
Property, plant, eguipment 380,086 8,243,625 9,434,505
Lesa: accumulated depreciation 208,431 3,138,776 5,174,177
Net fixed assets 171,655 5,104,849 4,260,328
Other
Bend issue costs, net of accumulated amortization - 6,603 1,152
Bond discount costs, net of accumulated amortization - 16,141 2,147
Deferred charges - ' . 3,229 3,229
Total other assets - 25,973 6,528
Total assets 2 534,886 & 5,193,218 § 7,634,811
LIABILITIES
Cash deficiency 3 - $ - ] -
Accounfs payaﬁle 48,226 4,758 260,018
Interest payvable ' - 45,351 2,586
Deferred revenues, and other - - -
Customer deposits - - 53,203
Notes payable within one year - - -
Special assessments payable within one year - 12,000 -
Bond principal payable within one vear - 280,000 235,000
Total current liabilities 48,226 342,109 550,807,
- 14 itd 1, r
Notes pavable - - -
Special Assessments Payable - 180,750 -
G.0. revenue bonds principal payable beyond
one year (net of amortized discounts) - 3,616,632 -
Total non-current liabilities - 3,797,382 -
Total liabilities 48,226 4,139,451 550,807
Het Assetg
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 171,655 1,015,467 4,025,328
Restricted for debt service - - -
Unreserved (deficit) 315,005 38,260 3,058,676

Total net assets $ 486,660 5 1,053,727 § 7,084,004




Business-type Ac¢tivities - Enterprise Funds

Nonma 3 or
Enterprise
Sewer Telecom Funds

Fund Fund (Schedule 3) Total
17,982 ] - 8 - - 2,402,286
- 241,332 - 241,332
1,050 40,957 3,140 863,519
- 261,703 241 852,850
19,032 543,952 3,381 4,359,987
8,749,428 9,550,333 4,619,383 40,977,360
2,957,111 1,181,627 1,623,156 14,283,278
5,792,317 8,368,706 2,996,227 26,694,082
3,034 57,922 - 68,711
8,185 166,514 - 192,987
3,229 9,688 - 19,375
14,448 234,124 - 281,073
5,825,797 -1 9,145,822 s 2,599,608 [ 31,335,142
- $ 1,067,154 ] 371,748 -3 1,438,902
2,650 44,238 5,983 365,873
28,054 271,862 - 347,853
- 105,129 - 105,129
-~ 13,294 3,600 70,097
11,711 1,000,000 7,671 i,019,382
20,000 - - 32,000
214,921 - - 729,821
277,336 2,501,677 389,002 4,109,157
46,842 - 1,152,301 1,199,143
301,250 - - 482,000
2,030,130 9,470,000 - 15,116,762
2,378,222 9,470,000 1,152,301 16,797,905
2,655,558 11,971,677 1,541,303 20,907,062
3,179,174 - 1,943,035 10,334,659
- 241,332 - 241,332
(8,935) {3,066,187) {484,730} {147,911)
3,170,238 $ (2,824,855} § 1,458,305 3 10,428,080

The accompanying notes axe an integral part of the financial statements
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city of Windom, Minnesota Exhibit I

TATEME F_REVENUE EXPENSE
AND CHANGES TN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YE OED DECEMBER 31, 2
Municipal
Liguor Water
Fund Fund
1 bel 1
Sales 3 1,264,798 5 -
Cogt of sales 918,781 -
Gross profit on sales 346,017 -
Qperating revenues
Billings for usage - 1,054,485
Materials and service sales income . - 2,641
Facility use and other revenues - 2,010
Total operating revenues - 1,052,136
ratin n
Power costs, Internet and Signal Costs - -
Salaries and wages : 152,348 187,826
Payroll taxes 19,779 24,432
Employee insurance 20,649 32,810
Supplies and maintenance costs 4,519 58,412
Utilities 12,131 74,335
Insurance 12,742 11,118
Depreciation and amortization 17,180 269,301
Other operating expense 21,390 112,041
Total operating expense 260,738 770,275
Operating income (loss) 85,279 288,861
Other revenues
Investment income - -
Local property taxes - 14,741
Contributions/reimbursements - : -
Total other revehues - 14,741
Qther chargeg
Interest and debt services - 169,701
Loss on disposal of assets - -
Total other charges - 169,701
Net income (loss) before operating transfers 85,279 133,901
Operating transfexrs - (out) {70,000} -
Change in net assets 15,279 133,301
Net assets (deficit)}, January 1, 20086 £71,381 919,826

Net assets (deficit), December 31, 2006 g 486,660 $ 1,053,727




Business-type Activities -

Enterprise Funds

NMonmajor
Enterprise
Electric Sewer Talecom Funds

Fund Fund Fund (Schedula 4} Total
- s - 5 - - -3 1,264,798
- - - - 918,781
- - - - 346,017
5,001,605 831,200 1,269,547 - 8,216,837
18,157 12,468 - - 33,266
63,033 1,292 - 328,075 394,410
5,082,795 904,960 1,269,547 328,075 8,644,513
3,447,672 - 352,549 - 3,800,221
393,526 266,940 297,418 220,697 ‘ 1,518,755
51,608 34,589 22,223 28,283 180,914
60,088 53,522 65,906 25,797 258,772
75,802 92,556 84,738 40,092 356,119
2,634 128,477 - 93,136 310,713
76,378 17,669 7,122 20,458 145,487
328,740 197,581 720,763 150,518 1,684,083
231,630 100,957 226,416 120,896 813,330
4,668,078 892,291 1,777,135 699,877 9,068,394
414,717 12,669 (507,588} {371,802) {77,864}
i9,827 - - - 19,827
- 14,541 - 317,825 347,107
- - ~ 5,500 5,500
19,927 14,541 - 323,325 372,534
12,046 104,983 644,155 28,555 959,440
- - - 2,356 2,356
12,046 104,983 644,155 30,911 961,796
422,598 (77.773) {1,151,743) (79,388) {667,126)
(250,000) - - - {320,000)
172,598 {(77,773) {1,151,743) (79,388) {887,126)
6,911,406 3,248,012 {1,673,112) 1,537,693 11,415,206
7,084,004 § 3,170,239 ] {2,824,855) 1,458,305 S 10,428,080

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the £financial stataments
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City of Windom, Minnesota

STATEMENT QF CASH FLOWS

BROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR _THE YE. ED DECEMBER

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers
Cash paymentg to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to/for employees for services
Other revenua
Other expense

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from property taxes
Interest received

Operating transfers - {out}

Net cash provided {used) by non-capital

financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Accuisitions and comstruction of capital assets
Sale of capital assets
Interfund loans
Proceeds from bond issuance, net
Principal payments on long-term debt
Interest paid
Other revenue

Net cash provided {used) by capital and

financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash sguivalents
Ccash and interest bearing deposits,

Janvary 1, 2006

cash and interest bearing deposits,
Pacamber 31, 2006

$

Exhibit F

Municipal
Liquor Water
Fund Fund
1,264,180 3 1,067,163
{951,459) {141,978)
(192,776} {245,068)
{329) 2,010
(21,390) {112,041}
98,226 570,086
- 14,741
{70,000) -
{70,000) 14,741
- {257,000)
- {127,770)
- {384,770}
28,226 200,057
204,682 (166,128)
232,908 g 33,929




Business~type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Nonmajor
Enterprise
Electric Sewex Talacom Funds

rund Fund Fund (Schedule 5) Totals
4,995,536 3 913,496 ] 1,263,314 5 330,607 S 9,834,296
{3,668,611) {238,303) (456,873} {152,974) {5,610,198}
(505,222) {355,051) {385,547) {274,777) (1,958,441}
63,033 1,282 - - 66,006
(231,630) (100,957) (226,416) {120,8986) (813,330}
653,106 220,477 194,478 (218, 040) 1,518,333
- 14,541 - 317,825 347,107
19,927 - - Lo 19,927
{250,000) - - - _ {320,000)
{230,073} 14,541 - 317,825 47,034
(156,309} - {220,391) {8,690) (385,390)
- - - 4,000 4,000
620,000 - - - 620,000
- 58,553 - - 58,553
{230,000} {214,612) - {6,985) ("108,597)
{11,835} {79,500) (638, 000) (28,555) (885,660)
- - - 5,500 5,500
221,856 {235,559) (858,391) (34,730} {1,291,594)
644,889 {541} {663,913) 65,055 273,773
1,472,578 18,523 {403,241) {436,803) 689,611
2,117,467 s 17,982 - (1,067,154} s {371,748) 3 963,384

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Windom, Minnesota Exhibit J

{Continued)
STATEMENT QF CASH FI.OWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006
Municipal
Ligquor Water
Fund Fund
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
MET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Het income {loss) from operations 3 85,279 & 288,861

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

cash provided {used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 17,180 269,301
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in receivables (947) 1,426
{Increase) decrease in inventory (936} 1,451
{Increase) decrease in deferred charges - 8,611
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable {2,350} 436
Increase {decrease) in deferred revenue - -
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits L= -
Nat cash provided (used) by operating activities -] 98,226 "$ 570,086

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Capital asset retirement



Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Nonmajor
Enterprise
Electric Sewar Talecom Funds
Fund Fund rund {Schedule 5) Totals

414,717 12,669 {507,588) ] {371,802) {77,864)
328,740 197,581 720,763 150,518 1,684,083
(32,607) 1,217 (31,996} 2,132 (60,775)
(20,139) - (34,977} 410 (54,191)
8,611 8,611 25,833 - 51,666
(45,986) 399 9,477 302 (37,722}
- - 13,036 - 13,036
(230) - (70} 400 100
653,106 220,477 194,478 5 (218,040) 1,518,333
- - - 10,358 10,358

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Windom, Minnesota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Principles Used In Determining The Scope Of The Reporting Entity

The funds and account groups included in this report are controlled by and/or dependent on the City
Council. Control by and/or dependence on the City Council was determined on the basis of budget
adoption, taxing authority, debt issuance secured by the general obligation of the City, and/or the

City's obligation to fund any deficits that may occur.

Regponsibility for the fair presentation of financial position, results of operations and changes in
financial position for all funds of the City in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles lies with the City Council. All fund records, with the exception of the Windem Area

Hospital Fund, are maintained by a centralized accounting system.

All of the component units of the City's operations are included in this report with the exception of
the Windom Area Hospital Fund which is separately audited and reported on. A copy of the Windom Area
Hospital Fund Audit Report may be obtained by contacting the City Clerk, City of Windom, 444 9
Street, P.0. Box 38, Windom, MN 56101 or call {(507) 831-6129,

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of

changes in net assets) display information about the non-fiduciary reporting government as a whola.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which nommally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-typs activities, which rely significantly on fees and chavges for

support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revemnues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use or directly benefit Erom goods, service or privileges provided by a given function
or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program ravenues are reported instead as general revenued.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns

in tha fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Prasentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement Ffocus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund statements. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the
related cash flows. Property tades are recognized as ravenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon ag all eligibility requirements imposed by

the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within
the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this

the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end
as

purpose,
of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a lisbility is incurred,

under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to

compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
wIB .



City of Windom, Minnesota

NOTES T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2006

SUMMARY OF STGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED) :

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation {continued)

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are
all congidered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal perilod. Oonly the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current £iscal
period is considered to be susceptible to acoryal as revenue of the current period. All other
revenua items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash ig received by the City.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1983,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector
guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation.
The City has elected not to follow subsegquent private-sector guidance.

as a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exgeptions to this general rule are charges between the government’s
proprietary funds and various other functiong of the government. Eliminations of these charges would

distort the costs and revenuas reported for the various functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish oparating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
conmection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue
of the City’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses
for enterprise funds include the cost of sale and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capital assets. A1l revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as

nonoperating revenues and expenses.
whe City reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating f£und. It is used to account for all

financial transactions except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Project Fund: Capital Project Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used fgr
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities cother than those financed by propristary

funds.

7006 A Refunding Bond Fund: 2006 A Refunding Bond Fund accounts for the accumulation of rascuress
for, and the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest and related coszts.

2dditionally, the City reports the following fund types:

gpecial Reverme Funds: Special Revenue Funds are used to account for &the proceeds of specific

revente sources that are legally ragtricted for specific purposes.

pebt Service Funds: Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for,
and the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs.

Enterprise Funds: Enterprise Funds are used to account for the operations of the City’s business-type

activities.
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City of Windom, Minnesota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL "STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONTINUED) :

Measuremsnt Foous, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
L] The municipal liquor fund aceounts for all activities related to the operation of a liguor
store.
u The water fund accounts for activities related to the operation of a water distribution

system.
L The electric fund accounts for activities related to the operation of electric generation and

digtribution system.
L The municipal wastewater fund accounts for activities related to the operation of a wastewater

digtribution system. ]
L] The Telecommunications fund accounts for the cperation of a breocadband communications system.

Budgetary Data

General Budget Policies -
The City follows legally prescribed procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the

financial statements as follows:

1. The City Clerk-Treasurer submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the
Governmental Fund types. This operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
finaneing them. Budgets are prepared on the same basis and using the same accounting practices
as are used to account and prepare financial reports for  the funds. Budgets are adopted on a
bagis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. The budget is enacted through passage of a rescolution by the Council and the tax levy is
certified the county auditor annually in December.

3. After adoption by the City Council, the expenditures incorporated inte the hudget become
management guidelines. Appropriations for all budgeted funds and the actual expenditures must
be held to budgeted levels unless amended through a supplemental appropriation raesolution.

4. The City Council may transfer by resoluticn, a supplemental budget appropriation to increase
spending authority if it is determined during the year sufficlent amounts have not been
budgeted. Reported budget amounts represent the originally adopted budget.

Unexpended budgeted amounts lapse at the end of the budget year. Legal spending control for City
monies is at the fund level, but management control is exercised at budgetary line item levels within

each fund.

Asgets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

Cash and Interest Bearing Deposits -
Cash balances are invested to the extent available in short term certificates of deposit and

interest~bearing savings accounts; these deposits are carried at cost, which at Decemher 31, 2005, is

the same ag market value.
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city of Windom, Minmesota

'NOTES T0 FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS (CONTTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (continued)

Property Taxes Receivable -
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien as of Jamuary 1 anmually. Taxes are collected by the
County in two egqual installments which are payable basically in May and October in the State of

Minnesota.

Inventories -
Tnventories of the Airport {resale gasoline) and Enterprise funds are carried at the lower of cost or

market using the FIFO (first-in, first-out} metheod.

c;pital Assets -

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide £financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $500
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market valus on the date of donationm.

The costs of normal maintenancs and repairs that do not add te the value of the assets or materially

axtend assets lives are not capitalized.
Major ocutlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the

following estimated useful lives:

Irprovements other than buildings 20-50 years
Building and structures 25«50 years
Machinery and equipment 5-15 years
furniture and fixtures 5-15 years .

General purposa computers 3 vyears

Long-term Obligations

In the govermment-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund finamcial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term debt are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, businessa-type activities, and proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of
the bonds using the aeffective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. Bond issuance gosts are reported as deferrved charges and amortized over the

term of the related debt.

Tn tha fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt igsued is reported
as other financing sourdes. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other f£inancing
gses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are raported as

debt service expenditures.
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City of Windom, Minnesota

qg.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2006

SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) :

¥und Equity
In the fund financial statements, govermnmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts

that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative Council plans that are subject to

change.

Net Assgsets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the government-wide Financial
statements. MNet assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used to
build or acquire the capital assets. Net assets are reported as restricted in the government-wide
financial statement when there are limitations imposed on their use through external restrictions

imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.

Compensated Absences

The City's vacation policy is that employees are to use any earned vacation by the end of the year,
unless a carryover is approved by the department head. Thig amount is considered immaterial. In
addition, compensated ahsences for sick pay have not been accrued since they cannot be reasonably
estimated. Therefore no amounts for compensated absences have been accrued ‘in accordance with SFAS
No. 43.

Financial Reporting Entity
The City of Windom, for financial reporting purposes, includes all of the funds relevant to the
operations of the City, with the exception of the Windom Area Hospital Fund, which is covered by a

separata audit report.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
reguires managemsnt to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ f£rom those estimates.

Changes in Accounting Principles

Aa of the year ended December 31, 2006, the City implemented Govermmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Fimancial Statements -~ and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for
State and Local Governments. GASB Statement No. 34 creates new basic £financial statements for
reporting on the City’sz finamncial activities. The financial statements include government-wide

financial statements prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, and fund financial statements which
present information for individual major funds rather than by fund type, which had been the moda of
presentation in financial statements issued prior to Daecember 31, 2006. The implementation of GASB
Statement No. 34 at December 31, 2006 caused the opening fund bhalance to be restated in terms of “net

asgets”.
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City of Windom, Minnesota

NOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2006

CASH AND INTEREST BEARING DEPOSITS:

In accordance with Minnesota Statutes, the City maintains its deposits at depository banks authorized

by the City Council.

Depogits

At vyear-end the carrying amount of the City's deposits was §3,436,444 and the bank balance was
$3,780,325. The City's deposits are categorized below to give an indication of the level of =xisk
assumed by the entity at December 31, 2006. Category 1 includes deposits that are insured or
collateralized with securities held by the City or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes
collateralized deposits with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust depaztment
or agent in securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in the
City's name. Category 3 includes deposits which are uncollateralized, inecluding any bank balance that
is collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institutien, or by its trust

department or agent but not in the City's name.

Category Category Category Bank
1 2 3 Balance

Deposgits $3,436,444 ] - g - $3,780,325

Minnesota Statutes require that all deposits with financial institutions must be collateralized in an
amount equal to 110% of deposits in excess of FDIC insurance (140% if coilataralized with notes
secured by first mortgages). Minnesota Statutes require that securities pledged as collateral be
held in safekeeping by the City Treasurer or in a financial institution cother than that Zfurnishing

the collateral. The bank balance ig categorized as follows:

Insured by FDIC insurance 5 224,910

Covered by collateral 3,555,415

Not covered by collateral -
$.3,780,325

RECEIVABLES AND UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS:

Significant receivables include amounts dus from customers primarily for utility services, use or
rental agreements for the City's airport facilities and services related to £fire calls. These
receivables are due within one year. Certain funds report accounts receivable net of an allowance
for uncollactible accounts and revenues net of unccollectibles. 2An allowance for uncollectibles in
the amount of §21,700 has been estimated in relation to fire call receivables in the General Fund.
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city of Windom, Minnesota

TEZ T HE _FI IAL STATEMR INUED
DECEMBER 31, 2006

4. CAPITAT, ASSETS:
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2006 was zs follows:

Primary
Beginning
Balance Increases
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 227,061 $ -
Consgtruction in progress 1,302,513 209,087
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,529,574 209,097
Other capital assets:
Buildings and improvements 1,645,615 1,083,540
Machinery and equipment 4,786,500 295,873
Other fixed assets 1,516,381 32,743
Infrastructure 785,754 600,111
Total other capital assets at historical cost 8,734,250 2,012,267
Lass acgumilated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements {329,940} {53,420}
Machinery and equipment (1,935,411) {493,525}
Other f£ixed assets (230,063) (35,621)
Infrastructure (259,299) (43,432)
Total accumilated depreciation (2,754,713) (625,998)
Total other capital assetsz, net 5,979,537 1,386,289
Governmental activities capital assets, net 7,509,113 $ 1,595,366
Primary
Beginning
Balance Increases
Business~type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 126,595 g 28,327
Construction in progress 328,285 -
Total capital agsets not being depreciated 454,880 28,327
Other capital assets:
Buildings and improvements 16,157,067 12,387
Machinery and eqguipment 3,831,236 15, 445
Furniture and fixtures 80,379 -
Othar fixed assets 19,814,853 329,230
Infrastructure 156,057 11%,857
Total other capital assets at historical cost 40,039,592 468,919




Government

Ending
Decreases Balance
% - § 227,061
{1,302,513) 209,097
{1,302,513) 436,158
{20,000) 2,709,155
- 5,082,373
(13,726) 1,535,398
(126,744) 1,259,121
{160,470) 10,586,047
20,000 {363,360)
- (2,428,936)
13,726 {251,958)
126,744 {175,987}
160,470 {3,220,241)
- 7,365,806
$ (1,302,513) ¢ 7,801,964
Govearnment
Ending
Decreagses Balance
§ - 8 154,922
- 328,285
- 483,207
- 16,169,454
{14,358) 3,832,323
- 80,379
- 20,144,083
- 267,814
(14,358) 40,494,253
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City of Windom, Minnesota

TES T T I TATE!

DECEMBER 31, 2006

Businass-~type activities:

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and £ixtures
Other fixed assets
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

_Total other capital assets, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net g

I D
_ Primary
Beginning
Balance Increases
(4,936,826) (366,819}
(2,469,962) {251,198}
(69,137) {1,948}
{5,128,111) (1,036,069)
{24,968) (6,242)
{12,629,004) (1,662,276)
27,410,588 (1,193,357)
27,865,468 -] (1,165,030)

Depreciation expense was charged to functicons/programs of the city as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Eealth and welfare
Culture and recreation
Congervation and economic development
Airport

Total governmental activities deprecistion expense

Business-type activities:
Municipal Liguor
Water
Electric
Sewer
Telecom
Arena
Multi-Purpose Centex
Rivey Blunff Townhomes

Total business-type activities depreciation expense

* The capitalized cost of the telecommunications plant includes capitalized

interest of $261.833.
capitalized interest of $2,650.
inciudes capitalized interest of $2,571.
Improvement fund includes capitalized interest of $4,951.

Construction in progress in the Water fund includes
Construction in progress in the Sawer fund
Capitalized cost in the 4th Avenue



Government

Ending
Degreases Balance
- (5,303,645}
8,002 (2,713,158)
- (71, 085)
- {6,164,180)
- {31,210)
8,002 (14,283,278)
{6,356) 26,210,875
$ (6,356) & 26,694,082

& 57,5881
176,601

203,742

10,661

99,758

3,524

73,731

$ 625,998

g 17,180
266,688

323,085

196,781

708,024

45,437

69,507

35,574

4 1,662,276
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Ccity of Windom, Minnesota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2006

LONG-TERM DEBT:

General obligation bonds
The City issuved general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acguisition and construction of

major capital improvements, and to refinance existing honded debt. General obligation bonds have

been issued for governmental activities and for proprietary activities to refinance debt.

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the
Govermment. These bonds generzlly zre issued az 15-year serial bonds with maturing amounts generally
increasing each vear. Some of the bonds issued contain special agsessments. These bhonds will be
repaid from amounts levied against the property cwners henefited by this construction. In the event
that a deficiency exists because of unpaid or dJdelingquent special assessments at the time a debt
service payment is due, the Goverrment must provide resources to cover the deficiency.

General obligation revenue bonds

The City issues general obligation revenue bonds to provide funds £or the acquisition and
construction of major capital improvements for the water and municipal wastewater funds. General
obligation revermume bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full ‘faith and credit of the

Government .
Revenue bonds
The City also issues bonds where the Govermment pledges income derived from the constructed assets to

pay debt service. Revenue bonds have been issued for buginess-type activities.

Following is a detail of the outstanding bonds asg of December 31, 2006:

Interest Final Outstanding
Rates Maturity Principal
G O Tax Increment Bond of 2000 5.6 2018 s 270,000
G 0 Improvement Bonds of 1994 2.44 2014 150,145
G 0 Wastewater Treatment
Bond Series 1995 2.45 2011 101,379 .
@ 0 Improvement Bond of 2000 5.6 2016 230,000
G O Improvements Bonds, Series 2003 3.77 2019 1,285,000
Equipment Bond of 2004 3.74 2007 50,000
G O Improvement Bonds, Sexries 2005 A 3.0-4.4 2021 1,420,000
G O Improvement & Refunding Bonds,
Series 2006 A ’ 3.7-4.18 2018 940,000
Total G O Special Assessment 4,176,524
G 0 Sewer Bonds Series 1994 2.71 2015 2,008,683
G O Revenue Series 1999 2.57 2018 2,161,000
& O Water Revenue Bond of 2000 5.6 2016 290,000
G ¢ Revenue Nota Series 1999A 2.29 2019 957,000
Total G O Revenue 5,416,683
Blectric Revenue Refunding Bonds 2004 1.4~2.65 2007 235,000
Communication System Revenue Bonds 2004 £.5-6.25 2024 9,470,000
Total Revenue 9,705,000
Total $16,568,207
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City of Windom, Minnesota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMEBER 31, 2006

5. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED):

Other Hotes Payable-

The River Bluff Townhomes (Enterprise Fund} notes payable has wvarious terms on the notes. In 2006,
payments were made to Bank of the West in the amount of £6,985. No payments were made on the
remaining notes payable. fThe current portion of the Bank of the West note is §7,671. The list of

the notes is as follows:

Bank of the West s 459,810
Bpecial Assessments 111,857
GMHF 180,000
MHFA 353,305
Cottonwood County 25,000
PM Windem 15,000
Toro Foundation ' 15,000

Total $_1,159,.972

in the River Bluff Estates Fund {Special Revenue Fund) there are three notes payable. The United
Prairie Bank (UPB) loan wasg obtained to pay off a note to GMEF. Tha two Bank Midwesat notes are
variable rate, monthly interest-only payments, which mature October 4, 2007.

UEB 7.99% Quarterly interest-only pmts H 111,298

Baginning 3-28-07 for 5 vears — 345 7™ Averue
Bank Midwest — 325 6™ Avenue 128,000
Bank Midwest — 427 6 Avenue 128,000
Total 5 367,298

In the PM Revolving Loan Fund (Special Revenue Fund) there are two notes payable. They are as

follows:

State of Minnesota - PM Windom & 150,000

Bank Midwest - N. Highway 71
Industrial Park 72,515

s 222,515
The current terms and maturities of the Midwest note are as follows:

Bank Midwest -~ secured by
N. Hwy 71 Industrial Park,
monthly payments of $3,831,
including interest at 5.6% 3 72,515

Scheduled principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows:

Principal Intarest Tatal
2007 5 42,979 ] 2,990 $ 45,969
2008 25,536 631 30,167
Total s 72,515 -3 3,621 $__76,136
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City of Windom, Minnesota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2006

5. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) :

In the Capital Projects Fund there is one note payable. %"he current terms and maturities of the note
are as follows:

Bank Midwest - secured by

2005 Street Sweeper,

Varying annual principal

And interest payments,

Interest at 4.6% 8 80,000

Scheduled principal and interest payments to maturity are as Ffollows:

Principal Interest Total
2007 s 40,000 $ 3,680 $ 43,680
2008 40,000 1,840 41,840
Total $_._80,000 5 5,520 4_ 85,520

In the EDA Fund there is one note payable. The note was ohbtained to pav off an interfund note
payable with the Electric Fund. The current terms and maturities of the note are as follows:

Bank Midwest - monthly payments
of $4,586, interest at 7.25% 8 622,477

scheduled principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows:

Principal Interagt Total
2007 $ 9,591 $ 45,435 $ 55,026
2008 10,190 44,836 55,026
2009 11,095 43,391 55,026
2010 11,938 43,088 55,026
2011 579, 663 14,088 593,751 :
5 622,477 $_ 191,378 §_ 813,855

In the Sewer Fund there is one note payabie. The current terms and maturities of the note are as

follows:

League of Minnesota Cities, equal

annual installments for five years,

no interest if paid within one year,

interest at 3% if paid in more than

one annual installment. 5 58,553

The Telecommunications Fund has accessad $1,000,000 on an operating line of credit with Bank Midwest.
The debt is fully payable in 2007.
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5.

L ~TERM DEBT INUED

TES TQ THE FI IAT, STATEME

DECEMBER 31, 2006

b. Changes in long-term liabilities:

Governmental activities long-texm lisbility balances and activity for the

December 31, 2006, were as follows:

I

ED

yaar ended

Governmental Activities:

General Obligation Bonds:
GO Tax Increment Bond of 2060 -4
GO Improvement Bonds of 1994
G0 Wastewater Treatment Bond of 1995
GO Improvement Bond of 2000
30 Improvement Bonds Series 2003
Equipment Bond of 2004
GO Improvement Bonds Series 2005 A
GO Improvement and Refunding Bonds Series 2006 A

Othier Loans:
River Biuff kEstates
River Bluff Estates
River Bluff Estates
River Bluff Estates
PM Revolving Loan -
FM Reveolving Loan -

- GMHF

~ United Prairie Bank
~ Bank Midwest

-~ Bank Midwest

State of Minnesota
Bank Midwest

Economice Development - Bank Midwest
Capital Projects ~ Bank Midwest

Total Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt s

Beginning
Balance Additions

280,000 -
168,515 -
122,439 -
250,000 -
819,000 -
100,000 -
705,000 -

- 940,000

108,784 2,514
- 111,298

60,447 67,553
43,822 84,178
150,000 -
110,246 -

- 628,408

120,000 -
3,038,253 1,833,551




Amounts

Ending Due within

Reductions Balance One Year
16,000 5 270,000 -4 15,000
18,370 150,145 18,820
21,060 101,379 21,579
20,000 230,000 20,000
48,000 771,000 48,000
50,000 50,000 50,000
10,000 695,000 45,000
- 940,000 -
111,298 - -
- 111,298 -
- 128,000 128,000
- 128,000 128,000
- 150,000 -
37,731 72,515 £2,979
5,931 622,477 9,551
40,000 80,000 40,000
372,390 ] 4,499,814 $ 566,969
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5.

T TQ THE FT IAL, STATEME

DECEMBER 31, 2006

L ~TERM DEB INUED) &

b. Changes in long-term liabilitieg:

ED

Businasa-type activities long-term liability balances and activity for the year ended

December 31, 2006, were as follows:

Business-type Activities:

General Cbligation Bonds:
G0 TImprovement Bonds Series 2003
GO Improvement Bonds Series 2005 A

General Obligation Rewvenue Bonds:
G0 Sewer Bonds Series 1994
G0 Revenue Series 1999
G0 Water Revenue Bond of 2000
G0 Water Note Series 199%A

Revenue Bonds:
Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds 2004
Commanications System Revenue Bonds 2004

Other Loans:
River Bluff Townhomes - Bank of the West
River Bluff Townhomes -~ Special Agsessments
River Bluff Townhomes - GMHF
River Bluff Townhomes - MHFA
River Bluff Towmhomes - Cottonwood County
River Bluff Townhomes - BM Windom
River Bluff Townhomes - Toro Foundation
Sewar - LMC Emergehcy Sewar Repair
Telecom - Bank Midwest

Total Business-Type Activities Long-Term Dabt

Total Long-Term Debt

¢. Mini ntg:

$

$

Beginning
Balance

Additions

546,000
735,000

2,203,295
2,313,000

310,000
1,020,000

465,000

2,470,000

466,785
111,857
180,000
353,305
25,000
15,000
15,000

1,000,000

58,553

19,229,252

58,553

22,267,505

1,892,504

Minimum annual priancipal and interest payments to retire long-term bonded debt payable

are as follows:

General Obligation General
Bonds Payable Revenue B
Principal Interest Principal
Year Ending December 31

2007 305,399 156,436 439,921
2008 276,393 158,694 455,376
2009 297,412 145,257 466,980
2010 373,455 137,653 478,736
2011 367,557 124,071 495,649
2012-2016 1,906,308 395,984 2,427,021
2017-2021 920,000 72,920 653,000
2022-2024 - - -
Total 4,446,524 1,195,015 5,416,683




Amounts

Ending Due within
Reductions Balance One Year
5 32,000 514,000 5 32,000
10,000 725,000 55,000
184,612 2,008,683 199,921
152,000 2,161,000 156,000
20,000 290,000 20,000
63,000 957,000 64,000
230,000 235,000 235,000
- 9,470,000 -
6,985 459,810 7,671
- 111,857 -
- 180,000 -
- 353,305 -
- 25,000 -
- 15,000 -
- 15,000 -
- 58,553 11,711
- 1,000,000 1,000,000
3 708,597 18,579,208 $ 1,781,303
§ 1,080,987 23,079,022 -5 2,348,272
Obligation
ionds Payable Revenue Bonds Payable
Interest Principal Interest
146,792 235,000 585,424
134,602 - 579,186
121,998 50,000 579,197
109,086 100,000 576,946
95,713 140,000 572,246
264,395 1,645,000 2,673,532
27,110 2,890,000 2,024,688
- 4,645,000 734,688
899,656 9,705,000 8,325,918
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2006

6. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES:

Economic Development Fund:

Due from Capital Projects $ 2,760
Due from River Bluff Estates Fund 74,262
River Bluff Egtates Fund:
Due to Economic Development Fund 74,262
Capital Projects Fund:
Due to Economic Development Fund 2,760
s 77,022 $ 77,022
7. DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES, RESERVED FUND BALANCES AND RESTRICTED NET ASSETS:
Gonaral Fund - Designated for working capital needs % 557,578
Total Designated Fund Balances : §_ B57,576
Library Fund - Reserved for capital outlay 8 1,087
Economic Development Fund - Reserved for capital outlay 7,144
2006A Refunding Bond Fund - Reserved for debt repayment ' B 618,050
2003 Improvement Bond Fund - Reserved for debt repayment ) 42,452
4" Avenue Improvement Bond Fund - Reserved for debt repavment { 12,620}
GO Special Assessment Bond Fund - Reserved for debt repayment 68,215
Total Reserved Fund Balances §_ 724,328
Library Fund - Restricted for capital outlay & . 1,087
Economic Development Fund ~ Restricted for capital outlay 7,1;&4
2006A Refunding Bond Fund - Reserved for debt repayment 618,050
2003 Improvement Hond Fund - Reserved for debt repayment 42,452
4'® avenue Improvement Bond Fund ~ Reserved for debt repayment ( 12,620)
G0 Special Assessment Bond Fund - Restricted for debt repayment 68,215
Telecom ~ Restricted for debt repayment 241,332
Total Restricted Net Assets $__965,660
8. DEFICIT FUND EQUITY: )

@ North Industrial Park Fund - The North Industrial Park Fund has a deficit fund balance of £77 at
Decembex 31, 2006, Management plang to eliminate this deficit by increasing revenues and
vontrolling expenses.

® River Bluff Estates Fund - The River Bluff Estates Fund has a deficit fund balance of £39,219 at
December 31, 2006. Management plans to eliminate this deficit by selling properties and paying
dowvn related debt.

® 4 avenue Improvament Bond Fund - The 4% avenue Improvement RBond Fund has deficit fund balance
of %$12,620 at December 31, 2006. Management plans to eliminate this deficit by assessing
properties under consgtruction and increasing levies.

° Airport Fund ~ The Airport Fund has deficit fund balance of §78,194 at December 31, 2006.
Management plans te eliminate thig deficit by increasing revenues and g¢ontrolling expenses.

s Telacommnications Fund - The Telecommnications Fund has deficit net assets of 52,824,855 at
Dacember 31, 2006. Management plans to eliminate this deficit by inecreasing sales and
controlling expenses.

. River Bluff Townhomes Fund - The River Bluff Townhomes Fund has deficit net assets of $£1095,080 at
Dacember 31, 2006. Management plans to eliminate this deficit by increasing occupancy and

controlling expenses.
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MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2006

STEWARDSHIF, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTARILITY, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TYPES:
Expenditures exceeded budget in the following special revenue funds during the year ended December
31, 2006:

ExXcess
Fund Fxpenditures
Ambulance $ 12,108
PM Revolving Loan Fund 52,588
Riverbluff Estates 22,425

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PENSION PLANS, STATEWIDE:

Blan Description

A1l full-time and certain part-time employees of the City of Windom are covered by defined benefit
pension plans administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA). FPERA
administers the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF) and the Public Emplovees Police and Fire Fund
{PEPFF) which are cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement plans. These plans are established and

administered in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 353 and 356.

PERF members belong to either the Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan. Coordinated Plan members are
covaered by Social Security and Basic Plan members are not. All new members must participate in the
Coordinated Plan. All police officers, fire-fighters and peace officers who qualify for membership
Ly statute are covered by the PEPFF.

PERA provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits to members, and benefits to
survivors upon death of eligible members. Benefits are established by State Statute, and vest after
three years of credited sezrvice. The defined retirement bhenefits are based on a member's highest
average salary for any five successive years of =zllowable service, age, and years of credit at

termination of service.

Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERA's Coordinated and Basic Plan members. The retiring
member receives the higher of step-rate benefit accrual formula {(Method 1) or a level acerual formula
{Method 2). Under Method 1, the amnnuity accrual rate for a Basic Plan member is 2.2 percent hof
average salary for each of the first 10 years of gervice and 2.7 percent for each remaining year. The
annuity accrual rate for a Coordinated Plan member is 1.2 percent of average salary for each of the
firat 10 years and 1.7 percent for each remaining year. Under Method 2, the annuity accruzl rate is
2.7 percent of average salary for Basic Plan members and 1.7 percent for Coordinated Plan members for
each vyear of service. For PEPFF members, the annuity accrual rate iz 3.0 percent for each year of
service. For all PEPFF members, and PERF members hired prior to July 1, 1989 whose annuity is
calculated using Method 1, a full amrmity is available when age plus years of service equal 80.
Normal retirement age is 55 for PEPFF and 65 for Basic and Coordinated members hired prior to July 1,
1989. Normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66 for
Coordinated members hired on or after July 1, 1989. A reduced retirement annuity is also available

to eligible members seeking early retirement.

There are different types of annuities available to members upon retirement. A single-life annuity
is a lifetime annuity that ceases upon the death of the retiree. No survivor annuity is payable.
There are also various types of joint and survivor annuity options available which will be payable
over joint lives. Mambers may also leave their contributions in the fund upon termination of publie
s;ervice, in order to qualify for a deferred annuity at retirement age. Refunds of contributions are
available at any time to members who leave public service, but before retirement benefits begin.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

DECEMBER 31, 2006

1Q. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PENSION PLANS, STATEWIDE {CONTINUED) :

a. Plan Description {gcontinued)
The benefit provisions stated in the previous paragraphs of this section are current provigions and
apply to active plan participants. Vested, terminated employees who are entitled to henefits but are
not receiving them yet are bound by the provisions in effect at the time they last terminated thair

public service.

PERA published a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for PERF and PEPFF. That report may be obtained on the Internet at
www.Mnpera.ord, by writing to PERA at 60 Empire Drive #200, St. Paul, MN 55103-2088 or by calling
{651) 296-7460 or 1-800-652-5026.

b. Funding Policy .
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. Thesa statutes

are established and amended by the state legislature. The City makes annual contributions to the
pension plans equal to the amount zrequired by state statutes. PERF Basic Plan members and
Coordinated Plan members were reguired to contribute 9.10% and 5.50%, respectively, of their annual
coverad salary in 2006. Contribution rates in the Coordinated Plan will ‘increase in 2007 to 5.75%.
PEPFF menbers were required to contribute 7.0% of their annual covered salary in 2006. That rate
will increase to 7.8% in 2007. The City of Windom is required to contribute the following
percentages of annual covered payroll: 11.78% for Basic Plan PERF members, 6.0% for Coordinated Plan
PERF members and 10.5% for PEPFF members. Employver contribution rates for the Ceordinated Plan and
PEPFF will increase to 6.25% and 11.7% respectively, effective January 1, 2007. The City's
contributions to the Public Employees Retirement Fund for the years ending December 31, 2006, 2005,
and 2004 were $130,769, $112,275, and $94,370, respectively. The City's contributions 'to the Public
Employees Police & Fire Fund for the years ending Degember 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 were $43,378,
$35,857, and $34,747, respectively. The City's contributions were squal to the contractually required

contributions for each year as set by state statute.

INTERFUND TRANSFERS:
A listing of the operating from/to other funds is as follows:

a. Operating transfer from Municipal Liquor Fund

to General Fund $ 70,000
b. Operating transfer from Electric Fund to

General Fund 250,000
¢. Capital transfer from Debt Serviece Fund to

Capital Projects Fund 306,211
d. Capital transfer from PM Revolving Loan Fund

to North Industrial Park Fund 64,280

In addition, a transfasr from Windom Area Hospital in the amount of §205,274 was made to the Hospital
Bond Debt Service Fund. This is the reported differsnce between transfers in and transfers out on

Exhibit B.
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12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2006

RISK INFORMATICN:

The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissicons; injuries to emplovees; and natural disasters. During
the vear ended December 31, 2006, the Fund managed its risks as follows:

Public Entity Risk Pool:
The Fund is a member of the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust (LMCIT), a public entity risk
pool currently operating ag a common risk management and insurance program for Minnesota local

government entities. The agreement for Formation of the LMCIT provides that the pool will be self-
sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for c¢laimg in
excass of regserved amounts for each insured event. Settled claims resulting from these risks have
not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The pooling agreement allows for the pool to make additional assessments to maka the pool self-
gustaining. The Fund had determined that it is not possible to estimate the amount of such
additional assessments; however, they are not expected to be material to the financial statememts
taken as a whole. The Fund pays an annual premium to the pool to provide coverage of risks related
to property, automeobiles, theft, general liability, worker’s compensation, employee liability and

srployes benefits and errorg and omisgsions.
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R
INT

VE
B

AT,
E_SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 200§

ASSETS
Cash on hand, checking and time depogits
Accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Special assessments receivable, deferred
Special assessments receivable, delinguent
Loans receivable
Interfund loans receivable
Property held for resale,
construction in progress
Total assets

LIABILITIE B.
Liabilitiasg:
Cash deficiency
Accounts payabla
Customer deposits
Deferred revenue, speciazl asgessments
Interfund notes payable
Motes payable
Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Fund balance - unraserved, undesignated
Fund balance - reserved
Total fund balances

Total liabilities .and fund balances

Schedule 1

Swim
Library Alrport Pool
Fund Fund Fund
$ 16,592 - s 23,482
- 1,901 -
- 47,251 -
- 8,137 -
] 16,592 57,289 $ 23,4482
-4 - 134,674 s -
1,770 408 57
- 400 -
1,770 135,483 97
13,735 (78,194} 23,385
1,087 - -
14,822 (78,194) 23,385
_$ 16,592 57,289 $ 23,482




Special Revenue

Economic North River Bluff River Bluff
Devalopment Ambulance Industrial Kstates Revolving
Fund Fund Park Fund Fund Loan Fund
73,956 349,235 - 3 2,622 25,447
- 132,008 - - -
77,022 - - - -
730,973 - - 399,719 -
881,951 481,248 - 5 402,341 25,447
- - 77 4 - -
295 1,981 - - -
- - - 74,262 -
622,477 - - 367,298 -
622,772 1,581 77 441,560 -
282,035 479,267 {77} (39,219) 25,447
7,144 - - - -
259,179 479,267 (77) {39,219) 25,447
881,951 481,248 - § 402,341 25,447
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city of Windom, Minnesota Schedule 1

(continued)

BONMAJOR_GOVERNMENTAT, FUNDS
X B. E SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2006

Special Revenuse

EDA PM SCDFP
Revolving Revolving Reavolving
fican Fund Loan Fund Loan Fund
ASSETS
Cash on hand, checking and time deposits 5 39,285 5 305,115 97,873
Accounts receivable - - -
Grants receivable - - -
Special assessments receivable, deferred - - -
Special assessments receivable, delinguent - - -
Loans receivable - 536,645 142,269
Interfund loans receivable - - -
Property hald for resale,
construction in progress 22,453 278,990 -
Total agsets 5 61,718 1 1,120,750 8 240,142
LIABILITYE B E
Liabilities:
Cash deficiency & - & ) - 5 -
Accounts payable - - -
Customer deposits - - -
beferred revenue, sSpecial assessments - = -
Interfund notes payable - - -
Notes payable - 222,515 -
Total liabilities - 222,515 -
Fund Balances:
Fund balance - unreserved, undesiguated 61,718 898,235 240,142
Fund balance - reserved - - -
Total fund balances 61,718 898,235 240,142
Total liabilities and fund balances 5 61,718 s 1,120,750 _$ 240,142




Debt Service

Total

2003 4th Avenuea @0 Special Nonmaior

Improvement Improvement Assessment Governmaental
Bond Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund Funds

42,452 - 64,339 1,040,382
- - - 133,910
- - - 47,251
237,760 176,185 672,208 1,086,153
- - 3,876 3,876
- - - 678,914
- - - 77,022
- - - 1,440,272
280,212 176,185 740,423 4,507,780
- 12,620 - 147,371
- - - 4,552
- - - 400
237,760 176,185 672,208 1,086,153
- - - 74,262
- - - 1,212,290
237,760 188,805 672,208 2,525,028
- - - 1,876,474
42,452 {12,620} 68,215 106,278
42,452 {12,620} 68,215 1,982,752
280,212 176,185 740,423 4,507,780
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City of Windom, Minnesota

MBINT TAT:

Revenuesg

Local property taxes
Special assessments
Intergovernmental revenues
Federal grants

State grants

Charges for services and facilities

Finea and forfeits
Investment income
Other revenuas

Total revenues

E nditur

current:
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation:
Library
Swim pool
Conservation and development:
Economic development
and assistance
Alrport
Capital outlay:
Other
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and £iscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess of revenuas over {under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers (out)

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance (deficit), January 1,
tund balance (deficit), December 31,

Schedule 2

AT,
ITURE BAT, :H
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2
Swim
Library Airport Pool
Fund Fund Fund
147,250 - -4 55,000
11,577 - -
- 240,592 -
- 15,486 -
2,041 37,203 30,730
1,771 - -
- 8,528 8,382
162,639 301,810 94,112
147,258 - -
- - 72,572
- 49,234 -
1,936 303,038 310
149,194 352,272 72,882
13,445 (50,462) 21,230
13,445 (50,462) 21,230
1,377 (27,732) 2,155
14,822 (78,194} § 23,385




Special Revenue

Economic North River Bluff River Bluff
Devalopment Ambulanca Industrial Estates Revolving
Fund Fund Park Fund Fund Loan Fund
152,961 - - - -
- 49,146 - - -
49,400 321,748 - - -
25,762 6,262 5,270 - 25,447
228,123 377,156 5,270 - 25,447
- 197,869 - - -
133,364 - - 6,119 -
- 72,357 65,078 - -
- - - 19,404 -
133,364 270,226 65,078 25,523 -
94,759 106,930 {59,808) (25,523) 25,447
- - 64,280 - -
~ - 64,280 - -
94,759 106,930 4,472 {25,523) 25,447
164,420 372,337 (4,549) {13,696) -
258,179 478,267 (77) {39,219) 25,447
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R

VE

MBINT TATEME F REVENUE EXFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Revenues

Local property taxaes

Special assessments
Intergovernmental revenues

Federal grants

State grants

Charges for services and facilities
Fines and forfeits

Investment income

Other revenues

Total revenues

E nd ity

Current:
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation:
Library
Swim pool
Conservation and development:
Economic development
and assistance
Airport
Capital outlay:
Other
Debt servica:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess of reventes over {under) expenditures

z_Finangi

Operating transfers in

Operating transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance {(defigit), January 1, 2006
fund balance {deficit), December 31, 2006

AT
ITURE

ES T B,

Special Revenue

8chedule 2

(continued)

EDA
Revolving
Loan Fund

BPM
Revolving
Lpan Fund

sSChp
Revolving

Loan Fund

1,381

31,333

7,308

1,381

31,333

7,308

577

18,555

577

18,555

1,381

30,756

(11,247)

(64,280)

(64,280)

1,381

60,337

(33,524)

831,759

{11,247}

251,389

61,718

s 898,235

$

240,142




Dabt

Service

2003
Improvemant

Bond Fund

4th Avenue
Improvement

Bond Fund

G0 Special
Assessment

Bond Fund

Hospital
Bond Fund

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

- %
38,096

16,122
126,744

$ -
147,215

355,211
201,433
187,467
240,592
15,486
441,122
1,771
1,381
118,293

38,086

142,866

147,215

1,562,756

48,000
28,187

13,858

69,429
31,233

90,000
115,274

197,869

147,258

72,572

158,615

49,234

442,719

207,429
207,856

76,187

13,858

100,662

205,274

1,483,652

(38,091)

129,008

46,553

(205,274)

79,104

205,274

269,554
(64,280}

205,274

205,274

{38,081)

80,543

129,008

(141,628}

46,553

21,662

284,378

1,698,374

42,452 $

(12,620)

s 68,215

1,982,752
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City of Windom, Minnesota

NONMAJOR ENTERPRTISE FIINDS
MBINT ¥
DECEMBER 31, 2006

ASSET

Current asggets
Cash and interest-bearing deposits -
Accounts and accrued interest receivable
Inventories

fotal current assets

Eixred
Broperty, plant, equipment
Less: accumilated depreciation

Wet fixed assets

Total assets -4

LIABTLITIES
rr iabilifi
cash deficiency $
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Notes payvable within one year
Total current liabilities

Non-current ligbilities
Notes pavyable

Total liabilities

Het: Agsets
Net Agsets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Unreserved
Total net assets ]

Schedule 3

Total
Multi-Purpose River Nonmajor
Arena Center Bluff Enterprise
Fund Fund Townhomes Funds

- % - 386 Y:1

440 - 2,760 3,140

241 - - 241

681 - 3,086 3,767
1,200,957 2,183,281 1,235,145 4,619,383
952,327 488,876 181,953 1,623,156
248,630 1,694,405 1,053,192 2,996,227
249,311 ] 1,694,405 1,056,278 2,599,994
50,263 s 321,871 - 372,134
2,985 1,192 1,796 5,983

- - 3,600 3,600

- - 7,671 7,671
53,258 323,063 13,067 389,388
- - 1,152,301 1,152,301
53,258 323,063 1,165,368 1,541,689
248,630 1,694,405 - 1,943,035
(52,577) {323,063) (109,090} (484,730)
196,053 s 1,371,342 (109,090} 1,458,305
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city of Windom, Minnasota

Operating revenues
Facility use and other revenues

ratin y9)

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Employee insurance
Supplies and maintenance costs
Utilities
Insurance
Depreciation and amortization
Other operating expense

Total operating expense

Operating (loss)

Q;;l;gr revenues
Local property taxes
Contributions/reimbursements
Total other revenues

Other charges
Interest and debt services
Loss on disposal of assets

Total other charges
Change in net assets

Net assets, January 1, 2006
Net asusets, Dacember 31, 2006

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
TATEME F_REVE!

AND CHANGES IN MNET ASSETS

EXPENGE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Schadule 4

Total
Multi-Purpose River Nonmajor

Arena Center BIufE Enterprise

Fund Fand Townhomes Funds
s 181,799 3 67,362 ] 68,914 328,075
126,064 94,633 - 220,697
16,228 12,055 - 28,283
10,536 15,261 - 25,797
23,485 10,015 6,592 40,092
59,814 25,398 7,924 93,136
6,723 8,028 5,707 20,458
45,437 69,507 35,574 150,518
71,328 31,654 17,914 120,896
359,615 266,551 . 73,711 695,877
(167, 816) {199,189) ‘{4,797) {371,802)
146,575 171,250 - 317,825
5,500 - - 5,500
152,075 171,250 - 323,325
- - 28,555 28,555
- 2,356 - 2,356
- 2,356 28,555 30,911
(15,741) {30,295) (33,352) (79,388)
211,754 1,401,637 {75,738} 1,537,693
g 196,053 -4 1,371,342 -4 {109,090} 1,458,305
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City of Windom, Minnesota schedule 5

NOMMAJIOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
MBINT TATEME ¥l H _FLOW,

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Multi-Purpose

Arena Center
Fund Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers 4 192,934 s 67,362
Cash payments to suppliers
for goods and sexvices (89,644) (43,124)
Cagh payments to/for employvees for services {152,828) (121,949}
Other expenszse {71,328} {31,654}
Net cash provided {(used) by operating activities {120,866} (129,365)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from property taxes 146,575 171,250
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 146,575 171,250
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAI AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acguisitions and construction
of capital assets . {476) {8,214)
Sale of capital assets - 4,000
Principal payments on long-term debt - -
Interest paid - -
Other revenue 5,500 -
Net cash provided {used) by capital and
financing activities 5,024 (4,214)
Net increase {decrease) in cash and
¢ash agquivalents 30,733 37,671
Cagsh and interest bearing deposits,
January 1, 2006 (80,996} (359,542)
Cash and interest bearing deposits,
December 31, 2006 8 (50,263) § {321,871)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net (loss) from operations -1 {167,818) & {199,18%)
Adjustments to reconcila operating income (loss) to net

cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 45,437 69,507
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increasa) decrease in regeivables 1,135 -
(Increase) decrease in inventory 410 -
Increage {dacreass) in accounts payable (32) 317
Increase {decrease} in customer deposits - -
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities -] (120,866) & {129,365)
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
- 16,358

Capital asset retirement



Total

River Nonmajor
Blufs Enterprise
Townhomes Funds
70,311 330,607
(20,206} {152,974)
- (274,777)
{17,914) (120,896)
32,191 {218,040)
- 317,825
- 317,825
- (8,620)
- 4,000
(6,985) (6,985)
{28,555) (28,555)
- 5,500
(35,540) {34,730)
(3,349) 65,055
3,735 {436,803)
386 (371,748)
{4,797} {371.,802)
35,574 150,518
997 2,132
- 410
17 302
400 400
32,191 (218,040)

10,358



DENNIS L. RICK, LTD.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

American Jastitute of Certified Public Accountants DENNIS L. RICK, CPA
Minnesota Soeciely of Certified Public Accountants TISHA S, PAPLOW. CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON LEGAL COMPLIANCE

Honorable Mayor and Members of
the City Council
city of Windom, Minnesota

We have audited the financial statements of City of Windom, Minnesota as of and for the year ended December
31, 2006 and have issued our report therson dated June 30, 2007. \

We conducted our audit in acecordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the provisions of the NMinnesota Legal Complfance audit Guide Ffor Local Government, promulgated by
the State Aunditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. 6.65. Accordingly, the audit included such tests of the accounting

racords and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstancas.

The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Local Govermment covers seven categories of compliance to be
tested: contracting and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness,
claims and disbursements miscellaneous provisions, and Tax Increment Financing. ©Our study included all of

thee listed categories.

The results of our tests indicate that for the items tested, the City of Windom, Minnesota complied with the

material terms and conditions of applicable legal provisions.

Thig report ia intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management, others within the
City, and State and Federal awarding agencies and 1g not intended to be, and should not bhe, used by anyone
other than those specified parties.

Dernio g Kk 1.

Worthingtron, Minnesota
Juna 30, 2007
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